
 

 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 3, 2017 at 5:30 PM  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL PLAZA 
 

 

1. Call meeting to order – Chairman Buttke 
 

2. Approval of minutes of December 19, 2016 Board of Public Works meeting 
 

3. Citizen Comments 

 
4. Award quotation for brine making equipment for the Street Division – Presented by Mike Winch, Street 

Superintendent 
 

5. Approval of plans for Zoo Maintenance Building and authorization to seek bids – Presented by Justin 
Casperson, Parks, Recreation and Forestry Director 

 

6. Approval of revisions to Policy 5.051 Banner Policy and Decorations on Historic Light Poles – Presented 
by Dan Knoeck, Director of Public Works 

 
7. Recommended items for future agendas 

 

8. Adjournment 
 

 

Posted this 30th day of December, 2016 at 4:00 PM by Daniel G. Knoeck, Director of Public Works 
 
 
 

NOTE 
 

********************************************************************************************************************************* 
It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above-stated meeting to 
gather information; no action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated meeting other than the governmental body specifically referred to 
above in this notice. 
********************************************************************************************************************************* 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional 
information or to request this service, contact Mary Anderson, Public Works Department at 630 South Central Avenue or by calling (715) 387-8424) 
********************************************************************************************************************************* 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD 
 

MEETING NOTICE 



BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS BACKGROUND 

01/03/17 
 

 
1. Call meeting to order – Chairman Buttke 

 

 
2. Approval of minutes of December 19, 2016 Board of Public Works meeting 

 
 

3. Citizen Comments 
 

 

4. Award quotation for brine making equipment for the Street Division – Presented by Mike Winch, Street 
Superintendent 

See attached memo and quotation summary.  Recommend purchase of the Brine Boss/Blend 
Boss from Force America (Varitech Industries) of Alexandria, MN at a cost of $82,000 and 

authorize execution of a purchase agreement. 

 
 

5. Approval of plans for Zoo Maintenance Building and authorization to seek bids – Presented by Justin 
Casperson, Parks, Recreation and Forestry Director 

See attached memo and building plans.  Recommend approval and authorize soliciting bids. 
 

 

6. Approval of revisions to Policy 5.051 Banner Policy and Decorations on Historic Light Poles – Presented 
by Dan Knoeck, Director of Public Works 

See attached memo and policy revision.  Recommend approval. 
 

 

7. Recommended items for future agendas 
 

 
8. Adjournment 

 



BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS MINUTES 

OF DECEMBER 19, 2016 

 

 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Buttke at 5:30 PM in the Council Chambers of City Hall Plaza. 

 

            PRESENT: Tom Buttke, Ed Wagner, Mike Feirer, Chris Jockheck & Gordon Earll  

           EXCUSED:  None 

   ALSO PRESENT:  Alderman Witzel; Director of Public Works Knoeck; City Engineer Turchi; Assistant 

City Engineer Cassidy; Street Superintendent Winch; the media; and others.  

 

PW16-140    Motion by Jockheck, second by Feirer to recommend approval of the minutes of the December 5, 

2016 Board of Public Works meeting. 

Motion Carried 

 

Citizen Comments:  None      
 

PW16-141    Motion by Feirer, second by Wagner to recommend approval of the low quotation submitted by 

Paul Bugar Trucking of Loyal, WI of $2.83 per ton for the crushing and stockpiling of the asphalt and concrete 

salvage from the 2016 construction season and authorize execution of a contract. 

Motion Carried 

 

PW16-142   Motion by Wagner, second by Earll to recommend approval of the final assessments for the 2016 

Asphalt Paving Program as presented. 

Motion Carried 

 

Director of Public Works Knoeck presented possible revisions to Policy 5.051 – Banner Policy and Decorations 

on Historic Light Poles.  The Convention and Visitors Bureau has given notice that as of January 1, 2017, they 

will no longer administer the overpass banner program.  Staff has suggested that the program be discontinued 

and the Board concurred. This was a discussion item only.  A policy revision will be brought back to the Board 

in January. 

 

Director of Public Works Knoeck presented an update on Veterans Parkway Estates private development.  The 

property has recently changed hands and the new developer would like to modify the development plan to move 

away from the condo concept to a traditional lot development. A key component of this new plan is that the 

streets and infrastructure become publicly owned rather than private. This was a discussion item only. 

 

PW16-143    Motion by Jockheck, second by Feirer to recommend ‘No Parking from 5 AM to 4 PM, Monday 

through Friday’ be posted on the north side of West 3
rd

 Street from 45 feet east of the east right of way line of 

Spruce Avenue to 212 feet east of the east right of way line of Spruce Avenue and that the Administrative Code 

of Traffic and Parking Regulations be amended to reflect these changes. 

Motion Carried 

 

PW16-144    Motion by Jockheck, second by Earl to recommend approval of the Request for Proposals for real 

estate acquisition services for East 29
th

 Street – Washington to Hume and direct staff to solicit proposals. 

Motion Carried 

 

PW16-145    Motion by Earl, second by Wagner to recommend that the first Board of Public Works meeting in 

January, 2017 be held on Tuesday, January 3, 2017 at 5:30 PM and the second Board of Public Works meeting 

in January, 2017 be held on Monday, January 16, 2017 at 5:30 PM. 

Motion Carried 

 



BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 

December 19, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

Recommended items for future agendas:  Alderman Wagner asked when recommendations from the 

Downtown Parking Study Committee would be coming back to the Board and whether that will include a 

discussion on enforcement.  

 

There be no further business for the Board, Chairman Buttke adjourned the meeting at 6:03 PM. 

 

 
 

 

Daniel G. Knoeck, Secretary 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS   

Mary
Dan Knoeck



Mary
Dan Knoeck

Mary
Steve Barg





 

City of Marshfield 

Memorandum 

 

 

DATE: January 3, 2017 

TO:  Board of Public Works 

FROM: Justin Casperson, Parks and Recreation Director 

RE:  Wildwood Zoo Maintenance Building (Project #PR-L-2824) 

 

Summary: 

The purpose of my memo is to seek approval to solicit bidders for the construction of the 

Wildwood Zoo Maintenance Building.   

 

The Wildwood Zoo Maintenance Building entails the construction of a new building, just west of 

the Ludwig building.  The building will house vehicles, equipment, materials, a kitchen, offices, 

a workshop, master gardener space, animal containment and additional storage space. 
 

To improve proficiency we are streamlining our operations from four separate locations into one 

location.  The building will remove maintenance equipment out of animal containment areas and 

move supplies stored outside to inside.  Also, the building will free up space in the Cougar 

exhibit to construct ADA-accessible restrooms and open up space for the Zoological Society and 

Rotary Winter Wonderland groups.   

 

The maintenance building is identified in the 1990 Zoo Master Plan, the 2006 Comprehensive 

Outdoor Recreation Plan and most recently in the 2014 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation 

Plan. The project was approved in the 2016 budget.  The majority of 2016 was dedicated to 

building and site design and getting a new certified survey map.   

 

Recommendation: 

To grant approval for the Parks and Recreation Department to solicit bids for the construction of 

the Wildwood Zoo Maintenance Building, subject to Plan Commission approval on January 17, 

2017.   

 

Attachment(s): 

Wildwood Zoo Maintenance Building plans.  

 

Concurrence:       Concurrence: 

 

Daniel G. Knoeck      Steve Barg 

Director of Public Works     City Administrator 

 

Mary
Dan Knoeck

Mary
Steve Barg



E

E

E

E

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E
E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

4'
'S

AN

4'
'S

AN

4'
'S

AN

4'
'S

AN

4'
'S

AN

4'
'S

AN

S
S

S
S

S
S

E

E

E

8''SAN
8''SAN

8''SAN
8''SAN

8''SAN
8''SAN

8''SAN

4
''S

A
N

4
''S

A
N

4
''S

A
N

4
''S

A
N

4
''S

A
N

4
''S

A
N

4
''S

A
N

X

X

X

X

1
''W

S

1
''W

S

1
''W

S

1
''W

S

1
''W

S

1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S
1
''W

S

X

X

.
P

L
O

T
 D

A
T

E
:

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
B

Y

S
H

E
E

T

F
IL

E
 N

O
.

6
/3

0
/1

6
,

P
:\
5
8
0
s
\5

8
4
\0

0
5
8
4
0
9
6
\C

A
D

D
\C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

\P
P

 1
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
L
A

N
.d

w
g

P
P

 1

S
IT

E
 &

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
L
A

N
0
0
5
8
4
0
9
6

W
O

O
D

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
W

I

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

A
R

S
H

F
IE

L
D

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 B
L
D

G
 S

IT
E

 P
L
A

N
.

.
.

.
.

.

.
.

.

. . .

IN
IT

IN
IT

.

0
0
5
8
4
0
9
6

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 N
O

.:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
A

T
E

:

S
C

A
L
E

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

.
F

.B
. 
:

.
.

©
 M

S
A

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 I
n

c
.

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
 |

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 |

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

F
U

N
D

IN
G

 |
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 |

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

1
4

6
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
A

v
e

 M
a

rs
h

fi
e

ld
, 

W
I 

5
4

4
4

9
(7

1
5

) 
3

8
4

-2
1

3
3

 (
8

7
7

) 
2

0
4

-0
5

7
2

 F
a

x:
 (

7
1

5
) 

3
8

4
-9

7
8

7
W

e
b

 A
d

d
re

ss
: 

w
w

w
.m

sa
-p

s.
co

m

B
E

A
R

 H
O

U
S

E

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

B
E

A
R

 E
X

H
IB

IT

0
1
5

7
.5

3
0

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 T
O

 F
IE

L
D

 V
E

R
IF

Y
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

S
E

W
E

R
 M

A
IN

 L
IN

E
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

S
E

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

 T
O

 L
IN

E
D

 S
E

W
E

R

I.
E

. 
=

 1
2
3
6
.7

1E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 1
8
6
 L

F
 @

 0
.6

1
8
%

C
A

U
T

IO
N

G
A

S

S
E

E
 N

O
T

E
 4

S
A

W
C

U
TS

A
W

C
U

T
S
A
W

C
U

T

S
A

W
C

U
T

1
4
 L

F
 -

 6
" 

P
V

C
 S

A
N

. 
L
A

T
E

R
A

L

(E
N

D
 -

 C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T
)

S
E

E
 N

O
T

E
 2

8
7
 L

F
 -

 6
" 

P
V

C
 S

A
N

. 
L
A

T
E

R
A

L
 @

 1
.0

%

(C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T
 -

 C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T
)

2
9
2
 L

F
 -

 1
" 

C
O

P
P

E
R

 W
A

T
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E

1
0
0
 L

F
 -

 6
" 

P
V

C
 S

A
N

. 
L
A

T
E

R
A

L

(C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T
 -

 C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T
)

1
 -

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 C

L
E

A
N

O
U

T

I.
E

. 
=

 1
2
3
9
.4

5

1
 -

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 C

L
E

A
N

O
U

T

I.
E

. 
=

 1
2
3
8
.4

5

1
 -

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 C

L
E

A
N

O
U

T

I.
E

. 
=

 1
2
3
7
.5

8

E
N

D
 O

F
 6

 I
N

C
H

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

I.
E

. 
=

 1
2
3
9
.5

9

21.5'

C
A

U
T

IO
N

E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

1
 -

 C
U

R
B

 S
T

O
P

 &
 B

O
X

8
7
 L

F
 -

 6
" 

P
V

C
 S

A
N

. 
L
A

T
E

R
A

L
 @

 1
.0

%

(C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T
 -

 C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T
)

T
R

A
C

E
R

 W
IR

E
 A

N
D

 T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 B

O
X

S
E

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

1
 -

 T
R

A
C

E
R

 W
IR

E
 T

E
R

M
IN

A
L
 B

O
X

S
E

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

C
P

 2
4

C
P

 2
2

C
P

 2
3

C
P

 2
3

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
A

T
C

H
E

S
 S

H
A

L
L
 C

O
N

S
IS

T
 O

F
 3

 I
N

C
H

 A
S

P
H

A
L
T

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

, 
1
2
 I

N
C

H
 B

A
S

E

A
G

G
R

E
G

A
T

E
 D

E
N

S
E

 1
 1

/4
",

 A
N

D
 S

A
S

 F
A

B
R

IC
.

2
.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L
L
 L

O
C

A
T

E
 A

L
L
 E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 L
IN

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
W

E
R

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 P

E
D

E
S

T
A

L
S

.

3
.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L
L
 R

E
M

O
V

E
, 

S
A

L
V

A
G

E
, 
A

N
D

 R
E

IN
S

T
A

L
L
 F

E
N

C
IN

G
 I

N
C

ID
E

N
T

A
L
 T

O

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

4
.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L
L
 F

IE
L
D

 V
E

R
IF

Y
 T

H
E

 P
O

IN
T

 O
F

 T
R

A
N

S
IT

IO
N

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 4

 I
N

C
H

 W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
IN

 T
O

T
H

E
 1

 I
N

C
H

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

. 
N

E
W

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 S
H

A
L
L
 B

E
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

E
D

 O
N

 4
 I

N
C

H
 W

A
T

E
R

 M
A

IN
.

5
.

T
/P

 =
 T

O
P

 O
F

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 O
R

 A
S

P
H

A
L
T

)

6
.

W
A

T
E

R
 &

 S
E

W
E

R
 I

N
S

ID
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
H

A
L
L
 B

E
 P

E
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
L
U

M
B

IN
G

 P
L
A

N
. 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

L
L

V
E

R
IF

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 T
O

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 &
 A

D
J
U

S
T

 A
C

C
O

R
D

IN
G

L
Y

.

7
.

A
L
L
 C

IV
IL

/S
IT

E
W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

L
L
 B

E
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

E
D

 I
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

A
R

S
H

F
IE

L
D

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
L
IC

 W
O

R
K

S
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

, 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 E
D

IT
IO

N
 -

 U
N

L
E

S
S

O
T

H
E

R
W

IS
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
.

F
.F

.E
. 

=
 1

2
4
5
.5

0









 
 

 
December 29, 2016 
 
TO:  Board of Public Works 
FROM:  Dan Knoeck, Director of Public Works 
SUBJECT: Revisions to Policy 5.051 Banner Policy & Decorations on Historic Light Poles 
  
BACKGROUND 

 
In 2013, the banner policy was amended to allow the Convention and Visitors Bureau 
(CVB) to administer the program by accepting and approving applications, collecting fees, 
and arranging for the installation and removal of large banners over Veterans Parkway 
and the Peach Avenue underpass.  A copy of the current policy is attached.  We were 
recently notified that CVB will no longer be administering the program as of January 1, 
2017.  
 
ANALYSIS 

 
Prior to CVB taking over the program in 2013, city staff in the Planning Department and 
Street Division were handling the banners.  The program became an administrative 
burden and took staff time away from other duties and core responsibilities. Even with the 
assistance of an outside vendor to install the banners, it was time consuming for staff to 
coordinate the vendor, banner delivery, banner storage, banner maintenance, etc.  The 
transition to CVB administration of the program seemed to be a logical fit and was a good 
change for the program.  A copy of the staff memo from October of 2012 is attached for 
additional background. 
 
Staff is recommending that banners spanning over Veterans Parkway and Peach Avenue 
no longer be allowed.  The attached policy revision eliminates the large banner program.  
Both a redline and a clean version are attached.  
   
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve revisions to Policy 5.051 Banner Policy & Decorations on Historic Light Poles. 
 
Concurrence:________________________ 
 Steve Barg, City Administrator 

City of 

Marshfield 

Memorandum 

Mary
Steve Barg



 
 

 
October 31, 2012 
 
TO:  Board of Public Works 
 
FROM:  Dan Knoeck, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Revisions to Banner Policy 5.051    
 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
The current banner policy was adopted after Veterans Parkway was completed to provide 
guidance on the requirements for banners spanning the public right-of-way and for 
banners on the decorative light poles.  In the original policy, the city maintained tight 
control over the banner permit process and installation and removal of the banners.  More 
recently, responsibility for street light banners has been delegated to the Convention and 
Visitors Bureau (CVB) for Veterans Parkway and to Main Street Marshfield for Central 
Avenue.  As allocation of resources has become more challenging, staff is proposing that 
the large banner program be turned over to CVB for administration.    
 
ANALYSIS 

 

The large banner program has become a popular venue for event organizers to get the 
word out about their upcoming programs.  While this has been positive for the community, 
it has also taken staff resources away from our core responsibilities.  Currently, 
applications are accepted and reviewed by the Planning Department.  Once approved 
applications are sent to the Street Division for installation.  Normally we’ve used an outside 
vendor to install the banners, however, in some cases, Street Division staff has maintained 
and installed the banners. In short, the large banner program has become a burden for 
both the Planning Department and the Street Division. 
 
The attached draft policy shows the proposed revisions.  Several of the revisions are 
simply housekeeping.  The most significant change is in Section 2,2 where CVB is given 
the responsibility of administering the large banner program.  Section 3,2 also clarifies that 
CVB has taken responsibility for the Veterans Parkway light pole banners and Main Street 
has done the same for Central Avenue.  I did present the revised banner policy to the CVB 
Board on Wednesday, October 31and they are willing to take on the large banner 
program. 
 
 

City of 

Marshfield 

Memorandum 



RECOMMENDATION 

 
I recommend approval of the revisions to Policy 5.051 banner Policy and Decorations on 
Historic Light Poles with an effective date of January 1, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
Concurrence:________________________ 
 Steve Barg, City Administrator 

Mary
Steve Barg



 

 

 

 

 

                      CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN 
                          POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
  
1. COMMON COUNCIL 4. FINANCIAL 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE 5. PUBLIC WORKS 

3. PERSONNEL 6. PARKS AND RECREATION 

 

 

CHAPTER:   
 
SUBJECT:  Banner Policy and Decorations on Historic Light Poles 
 
POLICY NUMBER:  5.051 
 
PAGES:  2 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  February 12, 2013 January 11, 2017 
 
SUPERSEDES POLICY DATED:  July 31, 2006 and April 12, 2011, and 
February 12, 2013 
 
Special Notes:  This policy/procedure manual does not in any way 
constitute an employment contract and the City of Marshfield reserves the 
right to amend this manual at any time subject only to approval by the 
Common Council. 
 
Section 1.  General Requirements. 
 
1.  Banners in the public right-of-way on publicly owned facilities are only allowed in 

three instances: 
a.  On the pedestrian bridge that spans the Veterans Parkway corridor; 
b.  On the Southside of the Peach Avenue Underpass; and 
c. On on the historic light poles that are located on Veterans Parkway and Central 
Avenue. 

 
2. All banners will be given permits on a first come, first serve basis, provided they 

meet the guidelines described below.  Applications from first time applicants shall be 
submitted at least 90 days in advance of the display period. 
 

3. City events will take precedence and no permits will be issued during times when the 
City has events. 

 
4. This policy shall not apply to banners on privately owned facilities addressed in an air 

space lease. 
 
5. Banners shall not have a commercial message nor contain a commercial logo. 

except as provided herein. 
 

  



 

 

 
 
 
Section 2.  Banners Spanning Public Right-of-Way on Publicly Owned Facilities. 
 
1. Banners spanning the public right-of-way are only not allowed. on the pedestrian 

bridge over Veterans Parkway and the south side of the Peach Avenue underpass 
bridge.  Banners on these facilities are only allowed for Community Events which 
shall be defined as an event, or a series of related events involving a subject matter 
of interest to a significant portion of the residents of the City of Marshfield which 
promotes civic pride in the City of Marshfield and which is not a purely commercial 
enterprise and where the proceeds, if any, will directly benefit either a charitable or 
non-profit organization.  It shall be further defined as an event supported by one of 
the following agencies that are funded by the City of Marshfield through the budget 
process:  Marshfield Area Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Convention and 
Visitors Bureau, Main Street Marshfield, Inc., UW Wood County, and the Fair 
Commission. 
 

2. The banner program for banners spanning the public right-of-way will be 
administered by the Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB).  The CVB will accept 
and approve applications, subject to the terms of this policy, collect fees, and 
arrange for installation and removal of the banners.  Appeal of any permits denied by 
the CVB will be brought to the Board of Public Works. 

 
3. Additional Requirements: 

a. Banner measurements shall be at least 80 square feet but not exceed 200 
square feet. 

b. Banners will be installed and removed on a predetermined schedule to allow for 
efficient installation and removal of successive banners.  Banners will remain up 
for a minimum of 30 days. Banners not delivered to the CVB prior to the 
scheduled installation date may be subject to an additional charge to reschedule. 

c. Banners shall be made of a durable material so as to resist fading and tearing.  
Any repairs or replacement of banners shall be the sole responsibility of the 
permittee. 

d. Banners shall not have a commercial message nor contain a commercial logo. 
e. Only 2 banners per side of structure will be allowed at any one time. 

 
 
Section 3.  Banners or Decorations on Historic Light Poles. 
 
1. Installation of banners or decorations must be approved by the Department of Public 

Works and Marshfield Utilities. 
 

2. The CVB will be responsible for banners on the Veterans Parkway historic poles.  
Main Street Marshfield will be responsible for banners on the Central Avenue historic 
poles.  Each organization will be responsible for banner selection, purchase, 
installation, maintenance and removal.  If banners are not properly maintained, the 
City, through the Street Department, may remove damaged banners as necessary. 

 
3. Additional requirements: 

a. All banners shall be approximately 24 inches wide by 48 inches long to be 
displayed on existing poles. 



 

 

b. Banners must be attached by means of the existing banner arms.  No extra 
hardware or fasteners is permitted.    

c. Banners shall be made of a durable material so as to resist fading and tearing 
with no metal components that could damage the paint on the poles.  Any repairs 
or replacement of banners shall be the sole responsibility of the CVB or Main 
Street. 

d. Banners may contain a small commercial message or logo of the banner sponsor, 
subject to the following conditions.   The commercial message or logo shall be 
contained within an area 24” wide by 18” high on the bottom of the banner.   
When two banners are installed side by side on the same pole, the commercial 
message or logo shall only be allowed on one banner.  A banner sponsor is 
defined as a business or organization that provides funding for a banner. 
 

4. Installation by Private Contractors: 
In order to be considered as qualified to install banners on historic light poles, the 
contractor must meet the following requirements: 
a. The contractor must provide a Certificate of Insurance as required by Building 

Development Services for Contractors. 
b. The contractor must provide a Damage waiver stating that the Contractor is 

responsible for 100% of any damage done during the installation or removal of 
the banners or decorations. 

c. The Contractor must be an owner or qualified operator of the equipment used for 
installation or removal. 

d. Appropriate traffic control shall be installed prior to installation.  Signs and 
barricades may be available from the City Garage. 



 

 

 

                      CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN 
                          POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
  
1. COMMON COUNCIL 4. FINANCIAL 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE 5. PUBLIC WORKS 

3. PERSONNEL 6. PARKS AND RECREATION 

 

 

CHAPTER:   
 
SUBJECT:  Banner Policy and Decorations on Historic Light Poles 
 
POLICY NUMBER:  5.051 
 
PAGES:  2 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  January 11, 2017 
 
SUPERSEDES POLICY DATED:  July 31, 2006, April 12, 2011, and February 
12, 2013 
 
Special Notes:  This policy/procedure manual does not in any way 
constitute an employment contract and the City of Marshfield reserves the 
right to amend this manual at any time subject only to approval by the 
Common Council. 
 
Section 1.  General Requirements. 
 
1.  Banners in the public right-of-way on publicly owned facilities are only allowed on the 

historic light poles that are located on Veterans Parkway and Central Avenue. 
 
2. This policy shall not apply to banners on privately owned facilities addressed in an air 

space lease. 
 
3. Banners shall not have a commercial message nor contain a commercial logo. 

except as provided herein. 
 
 
Section 2.  Banners Spanning Public Right-of-Way on Publicly Owned Facilities. 
 
Banners spanning the public right-of-way are not allowed.  

 
 
Section 3.  Banners or Decorations on Historic Light Poles. 
 
1. Installation of banners or decorations must be approved by the Department of Public 

Works and Marshfield Utilities. 
 

2. The CVB will be responsible for banners on the Veterans Parkway historic poles.  

  



Main Street Marshfield will be responsible for banners on the Central Avenue historic 
poles.  Each organization will be responsible for banner selection, purchase, 
installation, maintenance and removal.  If banners are not properly maintained, the 
City, through the Street Department, may remove damaged banners as necessary. 

 
3. Additional requirements: 

a. All banners shall be approximately 24 inches wide by 48 inches long to be 
displayed on existing poles. 

b. Banners must be attached by means of the existing banner arms.  No extra 
hardware or fasteners is permitted.    

c. Banners shall be made of a durable material so as to resist fading and tearing 
with no metal components that could damage the paint on the poles.  Any repairs 
or replacement of banners shall be the sole responsibility of the CVB or Main 
Street. 

d. Banners may contain a small commercial message or logo of the banner sponsor, 
subject to the following conditions.   The commercial message or logo shall be 
contained within an area 24” wide by 18” high on the bottom of the banner.   
When two banners are installed side by side on the same pole, the commercial 
message or logo shall only be allowed on one banner.  A banner sponsor is 
defined as a business or organization that provides funding for a banner. 
 

4. Installation by Private Contractors: 
In order to be considered as qualified to install banners on historic light poles, the 
contractor must meet the following requirements: 
a. The contractor must provide a Certificate of Insurance as required by 

Development Services for Contractors. 
b. The contractor must provide a Damage waiver stating that the Contractor is 

responsible for 100% of any damage done during the installation or removal of 
the banners or decorations. 

c. The Contractor must be an owner or qualified operator of the equipment used for 
installation or removal. 

d. Appropriate traffic control shall be installed prior to installation.  Signs and 
barricades may be available from the City Garage. 


	01 - BPW Agenda   01-03-17
	02 - BPW Background 01-03-17
	03 - 12-19-16 BPW Minutes
	04 - Brine maker memo
	05 - Zoo Maint Bldg Memo
	06 - Zoo Maint Bldg Site Plan
	07 - Zoo Maint Bldg Plans
	08 - Banner Policy Memo 12-29-2016
	09 - Previous Banner Policy Memo 10-31-2012
	10 - Policy 5.051 - Banners  - Revision 12-29-2016 - Red Line
	11 - Policy 5.051 - Banners  - Revision 12-29-2016 - Not Red Line

